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The Education Alliance

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report of
the charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2020. The annual report serves the purposes of
both a trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company law.

The Trustees have adopted the provisions of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1
January 2015) and the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the Education & Skills Funding
Agency. : :

The Trust operates six academies;

+ South Hunsley School and Sixth Form College for pupils aged 11 to 18 serving a catchment area
in the East Riding of Yorkshire. It has a roll of 2144 as included in the school census in October
2020;

+ Malet Lambert for pupils aged 11 to 16 serving a catchment area in the east of Kingston upon Hull.
It has a roll of 15630 as included in the school census in October 2020;

» Hunsley Primary School for pupils aged 4 to 11 serving a catchment area in the East Riding of
Yorkshire. It has a role of 176 as included in the school census in October 2020.

+ Driffield School and Sixth Form for pupils aged 11 to 18 serving a catchment area in the East
Riding of Yorkshire. It has a roll of 1354 as included in the school census in October. 2020.

+ The Snaith School for pupils aged 11 to 16 serving a catchment area in the East Riding of
Yorkshire. It has a roll of 911 as included in the school census in October 2020.

* North Cave C of E Primary School (transferred in to the Trust on 1 November 2019) for pupils
aged 4 to 11 serving a catchment area in the East Riding of Yorkshire. It has a roll of 100 as
included in the school census in October 2020.

In addition, the Trust operates School Centred Initial Teacher Training (SCITT), Yorkshire Wolds
Teacher Training, an organisation that trains new entrants to the teaching profession.

<

Structure, governance and management
Constitution

The Trust is a private company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Trust. The
Trustees are also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The
charitable company is known as The Education Alliance and trades as South Hunsley School and
Sixth Form College, Malet Lambert, The Wolds Teaching Alliance, Hunsley Primary School, Driffield
School and Sixth Form, The Snaith School, North Cave C of E Primary School and Yorkshire Wolds
Teacher Training.

Details of the Members and Trustees who served throughout the year are included in the Reference
and Administrative Information details on page 1.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.
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The Education Alliance

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Trustees' indemnities

During the year the Trust had in place third party .indemnity provisions for the benefit of the Trust's
Members and Trustees.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The number of Trustees shall not be less than eight. All Trustees, at appointment, sign a written
undertaking to uphold the object of the Trust and protect the Church of England designation and ethos
of Church academies. Members appoint a minimum of six Trustees. The DYET appoints at least two
Trustees, and has the discretion to appoint more than two Trustees, as long as the total number of
Trustees appointed by the DYET does not exceed 25% of the total number of Trustees. The Chair
and Vice-Chair are elected by the Board on an annual basis. The Trustees are registered Directors
with Companies House. They are personally responsible for the actions of the Trust and are
accountable to the Members, the Secretary of State for Education and to the wider community for the
quality of education received by all students of the academies in the Trust and for the expenditure of
public money. The Trustees are required, as trustees and pursuant to the Funding Agreements, to
have systems in place through which they can assure themselves of the quality, safety and good
practice of the affairs of the Trust. The Trust Board signs off the annual accounts and is responsible
for adherence to the Trust's funding agreement with the Secretary of State.

The Chair of the Board can come from the existing Trustees. There may be occasions where the
Board decides to recruit a highly skilled chair from outside its current membership. The successful
candidate would need to be appointed to.a vacant position on the Board prior to being elected as
Chair in accordance with the regulations.

Trustees have a maximum term of office of 4 years, and they can be re-appointed to a second term of
office. There may be occasions where it is appropriate and necessary for a Trustee to be re-appointed
for a further term.

Rather than having parent trustees, each Local Governing Body has two parent governors.

When a vacancy arises, the Trust assesses any gaps in specialisms in the Trust Board, ensuring the
Board reflects a mix of specialisms (e.g. finance, HR and strategic leadership) and the recruitment
process enables the Chair of the Board to assess candidates against the requirements.

The current articles require the Trust Board holds at least three meetings in every school year.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The Trust has developed an onboarding platform, which new Trustees will have access to. This
inciudes information regarding the history of the Trust, the cuiture and ethos, policies and procedures,
our schools and corporate induction information (such as GDPR, health and safety and safeguarding
training). The Trust facilitates governance training sessions, which are well attended by Members,
Trustees and Governors, and they normally take place three times per year, providing opportunities
for refresher training alongside strategic updates. Trustees also complete e-learning modules to
enable them to complete key training flexibly (e.g. safeguarding and data protection) and the Trust
has a performance review process in place, whereby Trustees jointly assess their performance and
training and development needs.
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The Education Alliance

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Orgahisational structure

The Trust Board delegates appropriately through sub-committees, including Local Governing Bodies,
the Finance Committee and the Audit Committee. Decision-making powers, roles and responsibilities
are clearly articulated in the Governance Framework, which includes the Scheme of Delegation,
Terms of Reference and a roles and responsibilities matrix.

Revised Articles

During the year a Church of England schoo! was transferred into the Trust, because of this the
Articles were reviewed, using the new model articles for Mixed-MATs. Key changes included the
following:

+ The objects have been amended to include an objects clause which makes specific reference to
the establishment of Church of England academies. This has recently been approved by the
Charity Commission.

*+ The Memorandum and Articles cannot be amended without the written consent of the Diocesan
Board of Education.

+ Members include the Diocese of York Educational Trust and three Individual Members appointed
under Article 12B. It has been agreed that initially the Trust will have 5§ Members, as the Trust
currently had 4 Members when the Articles changed. The revised Articles require the appointment
of the Diocese of York Educational Trust as a Member to enable North Cave CE Primary School,
enabling the transfer on 1 November 2019. When a Member leaves, they will not be replaced, to
enable the Trust to have 4 Members, as the new Articles require the 25% to represent the Church
of England.

* The number of Trustees will not be less than 8 and is not subject to a maximum. Members will
appoint a minimum of 6 Trustees and the Diocese of York Educational Trust will appoint at least 2
Trustees (without exceeding 25% of the total number of Trustees).

» The total number of Trustees including the CEO if they choose to act as a Trustee under Article 57
who are employees of the trust will not exceed one third of the total number of Trustees.

+ Trustees may, with the consent of the Diocesan Board of Education appoint Co-opted Trustees.

+ All Trustees will give a written undertaking to uphold the Object of the Company and protect the
Chur_ch of England designation ethos of Church Academies.
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The Education Alliance

. Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Trust's Pay Policy provides that every teacher, including senior leaders and the CEO,
automatically progress to the top of their pay scale, unless the individual is in receipt of a live support
package as part of -either a pre=capability or formal capability process. The Director of HR and
Governance pay progression of teachers and senior leaders towards the end of the performance
cycle, ensuring there is a consistent, fair and transparent approach across the trust. The Director of
HR and Governance meets with the CEO annually to review the Trust senior leadership team’s pay
progression, and drafts reports for Local Governing Bodies and the Trust Board, advising on teaching
and leadership pay progression, each year.

The Pay Policy is reviewed at least annually, and the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Trust Board meet
regularly with the CEO to ensure regular and effective monitoring of the CEO's performance
throughout the year.

Trade union facility time

Each of our schools pays into pooled trade union arrangements with each of our local authorities, and
we currently employ a number of those trade union representatives in our schools. We also have a
number of school based representatives (eight at the moment), who are staff working in our schools.
They undertake a range of full-time and part-time roles, whilst also undertaking trade union activities,
working closely with their local and regional representatives.

Each year, we are required to submit a trade union facility time report to the government, and for the
period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020, our submission details the following:

¢ We have between 50 to 1,500 employees in our trust (we currently employ just over 800
staff), and of those staff, eight of our employees are in-school trade union representatives
(their full-time equivalent is 7.6).

e 6 representatives have not undertaken trade union activities during working hours for the
period of time the submission relates to, and 2 representatives have spent between 1-50% of
their working hours undertaking trade union activities.

The submission is restrictive and does not allow the Trust to reflect additional trade union facility time
information, as it relies on the Local Authorities to reflect pooled arrangements. The Trust has
contributed around £15,000 to the Local Authority trade union facility pots within the reporting period,
and we have released 4 members of staff this year (2020-21) to undertake work at local secretary
level across Hull and East Riding.

Connected organisations, including related party relationships

The Trust has a 100% owned subsidiary, Education Alliance Social Value Limited. This is detailed in
note 15.

As a Trust that includes a Church of England school in the Diocese of York, the Diocese of York
Educational Trust (DYET) is included as one of the Academy Trust Members. DYET is also entitled to
appoint a limited number of Trustees (please see above).The York Diocesan Board of Finance
Limited (company number 00225234) provides services to the Church of England school in the Trust,
being in relation to essential functions fundamental to the religious character and ethos of those
schools, under the YDBE Service Level Agreement (SLA).

The Trust currently has no other connected organisations or related party relationships.

Page 6



The Education Alliance

Trustees’ Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Objectives and activities
Objects and aims

The Trust's objectives are set to reflect the educational aims and ethos of each Trust school. In
setting the objectives and planning the activities, the Trustees have given careful consideration to the
Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit and in particular to its supplementary public
benefit guidance on advancing education and on fee-charging.

The main objects of the Trust are:

a. To advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and
developing Academies which shall offer a broad and balanced curriculum and which:

(i) shall include Church of England Academies ("Church Academies” and each a
"Church Academy") designated as such which shall be conducted in accordance with the
principles, practices and tenets of the Church of England both generally and in particular in
relation to arranging for religious education and daily acts of worship, and

(ii) may include other Academies whether with or without a designated religious
character;

e But in relation to each of the Academies to recognise and support their individual
ethos, whether or not designated Church of England.

o Where an Academy is designated as or recognised as a Church Academy, in relation
tothe ethos and religious education provided at the Academy the Trustees shall
have regard to any advice and follow any directives issued by the Diocesan
Board of Education;

b. To promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of the areas in which the Academies are situated the
provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals who have need of
such facilities by reason of their youth, age infirmity or disablement, financial hardship or social and
economic circumstances or for the public at large in the interests of social welfare and with the object
of improving the condition of life of the said inhabitants, provided that any such use of facilities at
Church Academies will not facilitate a breach of the trusts upon which the Site Trustees hold the
school site.

The main objectives between 1 September 2019 and 31 August 2020 were:
¢ We want consistent, collective practice across the Trust and to reduce the replication of effort.
o We want to incubate best practice by encouraging innovation.
¢ We want our Trust to be an employer of choice.
o We want to develop the next generation of ethical trust leaders.
o We want governance that is effective, socially just and ethically sound.

e We want all our resources to be used effectively, efficiently and transparently to make our
schools better.

o We want a deep commitment to our environment to be at the heart of everything we do.
« We want to make a significant contribution to the broader school system.

+ We want good schools to see the benefit to their communities of working with the Trust.
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The Education Alliance
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Strategic Report

Public benefit

We have referred to the public benefit guidance contained in the Charity Commission general
guidance when reviewing the Trust's aims and objectives and in planning future activities. The
availability and access to the public of the Trust's facilities is a key object within the Articles of
Association. ‘

Achievements and performance

By the end of 2019-20 there were six academies in the Trust. Five of the six were judged Good by
Ofsted and one was judged Outstanding. One of the academies, Driffield School was judged
inadequate by Ofsted before it joined the Trust; in January 2020 it was inspected and judged to be
Good in all areas. Yorkshire Wolds Teacher Training has its first inspection and was judged to be
Outstanding in all areas. It is the only SCITT based in Hull, East Riding, York or North Yorkshire to be
judged outstanding

Due to the Coronavirus, there were no external examinations for GCSE or A level or end of key stage
assessments for primary schools. In secondary schools, grades were awarded using Centre
Assessed Grades. There were no league tables published this summer and therefore it is not possible
or appropriate to provide commentary on the exam performance. Student destinations were strong in
all four secondary schools.

Impact of Covid-19

The biggest challenge all schools and trusts face is operating schools during a global pandemic. We
have restructured our school days and have implemented a range of measures to ensure the safe
operation of schools. The Trust has invested heavily in providing IT equipment to all students who
need it to access high quality remote learning when required. The investment we made was
necessary because of the limited scope of the DfE's scheme, delays in delivery of the scheme and
significant cuts in the numbers of available devices. Without this additional investment, far.too many
students would be left behind and gaps in achievement would widen further. The Trust also invested
in providing food vouchers for students in receipt of free school meals, six weeks before the
government scheme was up and running. We also provided food vouchers during holidays before the
government changed tack and vouchers for when disadvantaged students are forced to self-isolate.

Measuring the performance of the Trust in a conventional way is not possible this year, but the
collective response to Covid-19 was nothing short of phenomenal. Schools remained open to key
students throughout the pandemic, including school holidays and bank holidays. Online teaching was
offered as soon as schools closed; in addition to the provision of IT equipment and food vouchers,
staff ‘and students also undertook huge community work including producing thousands of items of
PPE for the NHS early in the crisis, supporting NHS and key workers through community appeals and
providing care packages for care homes and a women’s refuge. The Trust made an enormous
contribution to the fight against coronavirus and reacted quickly to step in where needed.

Key non-financial performance indicators

The Trust produces monthly budget to actua! reports to monitor its on-going progress against target.
For the year ended 31 August 2020 total income was as expected, staff costs were as expected and
overheads were 6% lower than expected.

The Trust understands that its biggest expense is staff costs and that this must be carefuily

monitored. The Trust expects that staff costs should be less than 80% of income in order to remain
efficient. In the year to 31 August 2020 staff costs were 78.1% (2019: 73.6%) of incoming resources.
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The Education Alliance
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Strategic Report

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Governing Body has a reasonable expectation that the Trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further
details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting
Policies.

Financial review
The financial results for the year were as expected.

The Trust's main source of income (the General Annual Grant (GAG)) consists mainly of the funding
for pupils aged between 4 and 16. This income is based on the "replication model" of the Local
Authority's funding formula; the funding for post 16 pupils which is based on a formula administered
by the ESFA; and ESGG (Education Services Grant) which is a grant to cover responsibilities
transferred from the Local Authority to the Trust.

In addition to the educational operations of the Trust, four other related operations have been
performed, these are:

- A Teaching School Alliance (including outreach work at other schools) and a SCITT, which was
judged in 2019 as outstanding. '

- A Catering Service, which provides meals to students and staff

- Sports facilities, which when not used by the Trust, are made available to the public, and

- Hosting of three Public Sector Frameworks with Value Added Portal Limited t/a PAGABO (this
activity is held in a 100% owned trading subsidiary, Education Alliance Social Value Limited. Its
income is used to fund mental health and sustainability projects across the Trust and any remaining
income is gift aided to the Trust. Further detail is provided in note 15 to the financial statements).

Careful financial management had enabled the Trust to operate with a surplus balance. During the
year, the Trust made a surplus on restricted general funds (excluding pension reserves) and
unrestricted funds of £968,000. At 31 August 2020 balances on the unrestricted and restricted funds
excluding pension reserve and fixed asset reserves of £5,044,000 surplus (2019: £4,939,000 surplus)
and £4,250,000 surplus (2019: £3,387,000 surplus) were carried forward.

The Trust's non-teaching staff are entitied to membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS). The balance at 31 August 2020 was a net liability of £15,345,000 (of which £304,000 relates
to the transfer in of North Cave C of E Primary.School). This had increased from the balance 31
August 2019 which was £11,607,000. We are currently reviewing our long term LGPS position and
what safeguards, if any, we would be able.to adopt to reduce the effect that current market volatility is
having on the financial results. The employers' contribution rate is currently 17.2% at South Hunsley
School and Sixth Form College, 28.8% at Malet Lambert, 18.8% at Driffield Schoo! and Sixth Form,
17.8% at Hunsley Primary School, 19.1% at The Snaith School and 23.1% at North Cave C of E
Primary School. The LGPS pension liability is underwritten by the DfE. ‘
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The Education Alliance
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Strategic Report

Reserves policy

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Trust annually. The review encompasses the nature of
income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of
reserves. The educational obligations that the Trust has on a day-to-day basis are funded from its
restricted reserves that were provided for this purpose. The Trustees need to ensure that the Trust
has sufficient working capital to cover delays between receipt of grants and spending and are able to
deal with unexpected emergencies that may arise such as emergency maintenance. The Trust's
current level of general reserves (Restricted and Unrestricted reserves excluding Fixed Asset and
Pension Funds) is £9,294,000 (2019: £8,326,000).- Taking into -account the. nature of the Trust's
income streams, the Trustees are of the view that reserves at this level are sufficient to cover its
working capital needs.

At 31 August 2020, the Trust carried forward unspent capital funding of £464,000 (2019: £nil). This is
to be spent on capital projects in the academic year to August 2021.

Investment policy

The Trust aims to manage its cash balances to provide for the day-to-day working capital
requirements of its operations, whilst protecting the real long term value of any surplus cash balances
against inflation. In addition, the Trust aims to invest surplus cash funds to optimise returns, but
ensuring the investment instruments are such that there is minimal risk to the loss of these cash
funds.

“Theé main purpose-of the-Trust's-investment-policy-is-to;

+ ensure adequate cash balances are maintained in the current account to cover day to day working
capital requirements

» ensure there is no risk of loss in the capital value of any cash funds invested
+ protect the capital value of any invested funds against inflation
» optimise returns on invested funds

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Trust has identified principal risks and uncertainties including:

» A broad range of risks associated with operating schools during a global pandemic. These include
health and HR risks, risks to student performance and financial risk associated with increasing
costs that remain unmet by central government

On-going national curriculum changes and educational reforms and significant uncertainty around
the resumption of Ofsted inspection during a pandemic and no clarity on exam arrangements for
2021 or school performance measures for 2021

+ Financial risks around school funding that is facing all schools nationally. Cost pressures are
increasing, particularly around associate staff pay but funding has failed to keep pace. Costs
associated with Covid -19 mean any funding “gains” are likely to be wiped out.

+ Significant growth in projected student numbers at South Hunsley School and Sixth Form College
. over the next 10 years due to housing developments within the catchment area and potential
effects on education provision.

+ Inherited risks around The Snaith School estate, specifically around IT and staffing structures.

The Trustees have introduced systems and internal financial controls in order to minimise risk. The
Trust has a Risk Policy and a Risk register that is reviewed and updated at least three times per year.
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The Education Alliance
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Strategic Report

Where significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover.
The Trust has an effective system of internal financial controls and this is explained in more detail in
the following statement.

The Trustees have reviewed current examples of best practice and have:
+ set policies on internal controls which cover the following:
+ the type of risks the Trust faces
» the level of risks which they regard as acceptable; -
» the likelihood of the risks materialising;

» the Trust's ability to reduce the incidence and impact on the Trust's operations of risks that do
materialise;

« the costs of operating particular controls relative to the benefits obtained.
+ Continued to build further capacity in leadership teams across the Trust
* Revised Trust school level policies and procedures;

+ explained to employees that they have responsibility for interral control as part of their
accountability for achieving objectives;

» embedded the risk management practice in the Trust's operations so that it becomes part of the
culture of the Trust and

» included procedures for reporting failings immeAdiater to appropriate levels of management and
the Trustees together with details of corrective action being undertaken

Fundraising

The Trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken durlng the year was
monitored by the Trustees.
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The Education Alliance
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Strategic Report

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 1
April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) 11,947,476
Energy consumption breakdown (kWh) optional
e G@Gas 8,526,884
e Electricity 3,095,974
e Fuel Oil 296,133
e Transport fuel : _ 28,485
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Gas consumption 1,568
Fuel oil consumption ‘ 79
Owned transport — Fleet vehicles 7
Refrigerant released from air conditioning systems ' 125
Total scope 1 1,667
1 Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Purchased electricity ' 791
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e , )
Business mileage — passenger vehicles 16.6
Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 2,474
Total pupils on roll ' 6,176
Intensity ratio :
Tonnes CO2e per pupil . : 0.400

Quantification and Reporting Methodology:-

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also
used the GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard and have used the 2019 UK Government'’s
Conversion Factors for Company Reporting. PEM Ltd have assessed the Trust’s GHG emissions in
accordance with the HM Governments ‘Environmental Reporting Guidelines: Including
streamlined energy and carbon reporting guidance’ (March 2019). Specific reference was made to
the academy trust guidance.

Inténsity measurement
The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil,

the recommended ratio for the sector.
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The Education Alliance

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)
Stfategic Report

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

The Trust already employs good environmental stewardship. In 2019 The Trust commissioned PEM
to develop an energy baseline, PEM compiled a table of technological interventions that could be
used to reduce the carbon footprint of The Trust. In addition, The Trust ran a sustainability strand
throughout its curriculum during the 2019/20 academic year. Energy efficiency measures have been
primarily based on behaviour change.

Energy reduction is one of The Trust 's seven strategic estates priorities. The Trust has committed to
developing and delivering a trust wide sustainability, carbon, energy reduction and waste strategy to
deliver a 10% reduction in scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions, zero landfill, a 20% increase in recycling
rates and a removal of the sale of single use plastics by 2025. The baseline in respect of the scope 1
& 2 carbon emissions is 2,458 tCO2e (this reports scope 1 & 2 emissions).

The Trust has committed to purchase its electricity from renewable sources. Our aspiration is to have
all our electricity procured from renewable sources by the end of 2021.

Further investment in technological energy conservation measures (ECM) are needed in the short-
term. ECMs for electricity reduction are replacement of old inefficient T8 fluorescent lighting systems
with energy efficient LED alternatives. In addition, the application of Solar PV to some of the rooftops
of the school building is receiving some attention. The Trust intends to explore the viability of such
schemes in the financial year 2020/21. ’

ECMs for space and hot water heating (currently gas and oil fired) include the replacement of oil
boilers with gas fired boilers, since the emission factor for gas is lower than that of oil and the
combustion efficiency of the new gas-fired condensing boilers will be greater than existing efficiencies.
In addition, several plant rooms have poor thermal insulation with exposed valves, flanges, and
ancillaries. A recent thermal camera audit highlighted potential areas to target with new insulation
during 2020/21.
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The Education Alliance
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Strategic Report

Plans for future periods

In 2020, our main strategic-aim-for Trust growth is to expand the positive impact we have on more
lives.

This can come from:

e new schools joining the Trust; we continue to develop partnerships to develop our primary arm
further
improving the performance of our schools;

e contributing significantly to the reglonal supply of new entrants to the profession through the
SCITT;

e improving the quality of teaching through the Associate Research School and TSA; building our
system influence regionally and nationally

SCITT Development

We are finalising plans for a potential merger of 2 School Direct programmes into our SCITT for
2021. This will increase numbers of trainees to at least 70 and will address the imbalance of primary
and secondary numbers and will secure us as the provider of choice for the East Riding. The final
stage in our growth plan will be to create new accommodation for the SCITT and the Trust to
accommodate the growth and to continue to attract the best candidates for teacher training. We
have 2 initial concepts, one on the site of South Hunsley which is prohibitively expensive and one
for the-extension of existing SCITT/trust accommodation.

| Teaching School-Hub-Partnership. - ... _ _

We are currently working with the strateglc bid group to develop structures and processes that
ensure TEAL is at the heart of delivery of ITT, Early. Career Framework (ECF), NPQ courses and
CPD for the East Riding. The bid will be submitted by the end of October and, if successful, work
will begin on structures for launch in September 2021.

Teacher and Staff Development

As we move away from being a Teaching School, we are working to finalise a strateglc plan to bring
total coherenceto our staff development offer for everyone who works in the Trust. Starting with ITT
and Early Career Framework, new colleagues would be supported to develop into great teachers
and future leaders. Our vision is to develop “The TEAL Institute” which will operate alongside the
SCITT and will provide the highest quality CPD for all trust staff, in partnership with the new TS Hub
(above) and the highest quality external partners and providers. We will seek to launch “The
Institute” in September 2021.

Associate Research School

We are working on a plan to engage more fully with Hull schools and have restructured how we
operate so colleagues we employed as Research Leads for the Associate Research School now
work one day per week on trust CPD and one on external CPD, rather than 2 external days as they
did in Year 1.

Potential New Schools

The DfE and the RSC team are beginning conversations about future conversions, but this is still
slow because of Covid. The RSC is aware of our willingness to consider new schools joining. We
continue to build positive relationships with primaries through the SCITT, the Research Schooi and
the CEQ’s NLE work.

Estates and SCA Funding

Finalise plans and timescales around new structure. Bring forward detailed, costed 5 Year estates
plan with milestones and spending for SCA funding by late January 2021. Joint Governors meeting
to launch. Further develop thinking around Hunsley Primary and consider affordability.
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The Education Alliance

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Promoting the success of the Trust

The Board of Trustees have considered the matters set out in section 172 (1) (a) to (f) when performing
their duty to promote the success of the Trust.

The Board of Trustees continue to ensure that any business decisions consider the long-term impact on
all key stakeholders. During the period there has been a strong focus on the continued integration with all
academies within the Trust to ensure that the Trust continues to function in a single consistent manner
going forward. This integration promotes employee development and allows supplier and customer
relationships to be elevated to a MAT level.

Environmental issues continue to be a major focus of the Trust and are a key consideration as the Board
compiles its strategy. The Board of Trustees encourage sharing of best practices between all academies
within the Trust to ensure it operates at the highest possible standard and endeavours for all members to
be treated fairly.

The Board of Trustees meet regularly to oversee implementation of the Trust's strategy. This includes,
but is not limited to, reviewing the performance against forecasts, authorising and monitoring capital
investment, assessing compliance with regulations and maintaining a high level of active training to
promote a safe working environment, all of which contribute directly to the long term success of the Trust.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The Board of Trustees consider the Trust's employees to be integral to its continued success. The Board
of Trustees makes use of the Senior Management Teams throughout the Trust to ensure that all
employees are kept up to date with key and relevant information which may concern them as employees.
Each academy location consults its employees as necessary when making material decisions which may
affect them. Employees are encouraged to have an interest in the performance and success of the Trust.
The Trust invests heavily in training to allow staff members to meet the needs of the Trust and deliver on
its obligations to the UK educational sector and the Secretary of State for Education

The policy of the Trust is to support recruitment and retention of students and employees with disabilities.
The Trust supports this by adapting the physical environment wherever possible, by making support
resources available and through training and career development. New buildings and improvements to
existing buildings all recognise the need to be fully DDA compliant.

Equal Opportunities

The Trustees recognise that equal opportunities should be an integral part of good practice within the
workplace. The Trust aims to maintain equal opportunity in all areas of its activities including creating a
working environment in which the contribution and needs of all people are fully valued.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Trust
The Board of Trustees continuously consider key stakeholder relationships and develops them through
the Senior Management Team. The Trust considers relationships with customers and suppliers on a
local and national scale and maintains strong relationships at a local and national level.
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The Education Alliance

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Auditor
In so far as the Trustees are aware:

» there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and

+ the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees' Report was approved by the Board of Trustees on 16 December 2020 and signed on its
behalf by:

Mr R Swain
Trustee
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The Education Alliance

Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Education Alliance
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system
is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to Mr J Uttley, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good
financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in
the funding agreement between The Education Alliance and the Secretary of State for Education.
They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or
breakdowns in internal control. ’

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustées' Report and
in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 8 times during
the year. Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Meetings Outof a
Trustee attended possible
Mr R Swain (Chair) 8 8
Mr P Nicholson (resigned 27.01.20) C 2 3
Mr P Hall (Vice Chair) 7 8
Mrs A Barker . 7 8
Mrs N Clark 6 8
Mr A Steele 7 8
Mr A Bradley 7 8
Mr S Nicholson (resigned 04.05.20) 4 5
Mrs C Graham-Brown 3 5
Mr S Whitaker 4 5

Governance reviews

The financial oversight of the Trust remains with the Board of Directors (on which A Steele is a
Chartered Accountant) or the Audit Committee (see below). There is a separate Finance Committee
which meets adhoc to discuss specific financial issues. The Finance Committee met twice during the
academic year to 31 August 2020.

The Audit Committeé is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to maintain
oversight of the Trust's governance, risk management, internal control and value for money
- framework. The membership of the Audit Committee is noted below. Mr C Wicks is an external
" representative to the Trust with significant financial and risk management experience. This committee
meets at least three times per year. Attendance at meetings during the year was as follows:
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The Education Alliance

Governance Statement (continued)

Meetings Out of a
Trustee attended possible
Mr A Bradley Chair 2 2
Mr C Wicks 2 2
Mr J Fielder 2 2
Mr S Nicholson (resigned 04.05.20) 2 2
Mr S Whitaker (appointed 12.06.20) 0 0

Review of value for-money

The Accounting Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in the use of
public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can
be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer for the
Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

+ Completing a detailed tendering process where required

« Aligning policies, procedures, systems and contracts where possible within the Trust

» Continually reviewing staffing costs and structures and monitoring staff costs as a percentage of
income i

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable fevel rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on
an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Trust policies,
aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should
they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal
control has been in place in The Education Alliance for the year ended 31 August 2020 and up to the
date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The
Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year ended 31 August 2020 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly
reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The risk and control framework

The Trust's systerﬁ of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of
delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

» comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic flnanC|aI
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;
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The Education Alliance

Governance Statement (continued)

+ regular reviews by the Board of Trustees and Local Governing Bodies of reports which indicate
financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and
expenditure programmes;

+ setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

+ clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
+ delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

+ identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees appointed Smailes Goldie Chartered Accountants to carry out the internal audit
function from 1 September 2019, however, due to a change in the Academies Financial Handbook as
a result of the revised FRS Ethical Standard, they will be replaced with an independent firm, Forrester
Boyd from 1 September 2020.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of
checks on the Trust's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period
included:

1. Procurement and banking controls and procedures
2. Payroll controls and procedures

3. Income recognition procedures

4, Fixed asset controls and procedures

On a quarterly basis, the internal auditors produce a report to the Board of Trustees and the Audit
Committee regarding the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the governing
body's financial responsibilities. There have been no material control issues identified by the internal
auditors during the year. Any non-material recommendations have been addressed on a timely basis
by the Trust's Finance Director.

Review of effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, Mr J Uttley has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

+ the work of the internal auditor;
+ the work of the external auditor;
+ the financial management and governance self assessment process;

+ the work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system
of internal control by the Audit Committee and a plan to address any weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system is in place. .

Approved by the Board of Trustees on 16 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr R Swain
Trustee : Accounting Officer
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The Education Alliance

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Accounting Officer of The Education Alliance | have considered my responsibility to notify the Trust
Board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Trust, under
the funding agreement in place between the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of
my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook
2019.

| confirm that | and the Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified
to the Board of Trustees and the ESFA.

Accounting officer

16 December 2020
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The Education Alliance

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law)
are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the
Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently

» observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2019 to 2020

+ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the charitable company will continue in business

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of
good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE
have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

Approved by the Board of Trustees on 16 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr R Swain
Trustee
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The Education Alliance

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
The Education Alliance

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Education Alliance and its subsidiary (the Trust') for
the year ended 31 August 2020, which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating
Income and Expenditure Account, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows, and Notes to the
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including Financial
Ireland-the -Charities-SORP 2019-and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 "to 2020 issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency.

l

In our opinion the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2020 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended,;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the
Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require
us to report to you where:

+ the Trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

+ the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
_that may cast significant doubt about the Trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Trustees' annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Other information includes the Trustees’ report (incorporating the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report), the Governance statement, and the Accounting Officer's statement.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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The Education Alliance

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
The Education Alliance (continued) ,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Trustees' Report (incorporating the Strategic Report and Directors’
Report) for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements; and

+ the Strategic Report and Trustees’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report and
Trustees' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion: ’

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
+ certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities set out on page 21, the
Trustees (who are also the Directors of the Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view,
and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The Education Alliance

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
The Education Alliance (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud.or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these-financial statements. :

A further description of our. responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This descrlptlon
forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Trust's Trustees, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust's
Trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Trust and its Trustees, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.

- Luke Taylor BSc(Hons) ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Smailes Goldie,
Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor.

Regent's Court

Princess Street

Hull

East Yorkshire

HU2 8BA

16 December 2020

Note: :
The maintenance and integrity of The Education Alliance website is the responsibility of the Trustees; .
the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly,
the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial
statements since they were initially presented on the website.
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The Education Alliance

Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to The Education
Alliance and the Education & Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 8 November 2019 and further to the
requirements of the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies
Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance
about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by The Education Alliance during the
period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have been applied to the purposes identified by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Education Alliance and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of
our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we may state to The Education Alliance
and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The
Education Alliance and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Governing Body's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of the The Education Alliance's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 April 2011 and the Academies Financial
Handbook extant from 1 September 2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income
received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to
the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s
ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement
letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you
whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material
respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year from 1 September 2019 to 31
August 2020 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020
issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is ,to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a
negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we
do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and
propriety of the Trust’s income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

+ Ensuring value for money is sought for all goods/services procured by the Trust, including those
procured from related parties of the Trust.

+ Ensuring that fixed asset additions are made in line with the terms of the fundlng received and that
fixed asset disposals are properly authorised by the DfE

+ Ensuring that expenditure incurred through the Trust bank account, debit and credit cards is
appropriate for the purposes of the academy and that there has been no personal expenditure
from the academy's funds.
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The Education Alliance

Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to The Education
Alliance and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

» Ensuring pension contributions are paid to the respective schemes in a timely manner.
+ Ensuring returns required by regulatory or funding authorities are completed on a timely basis.

Conclusion

In the course of our work nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material
respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year from 1 September 2019 to
31 August 2020 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Smailes Goldie
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor
Regent's Court
Princess Street

Hull

East Yorkshire

HU2 8BA

16 December 2020

Page 26



The Education Alliance

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted

Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset 2019/20 2018/19
Funds Funds Funds Total Total
Note £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Income and endowments from:
Voluntary income
Donations and capital
grants 2 8 20 1,527 1,555 23,820
Transfer from local
authority on conversion 53 (224) 15 - (156) -
Charitable activities:
Funding for the Trust's
educational operations 3 1,214 32,926 - 34,140 30,196
Teaching schools - 287 - 287 201
Other trading activities 4 ‘ 826 - - 826 420
Investments 5 61 - - 61 48
Total 2,162 33,009 1,542 36,713 54,685
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 6 1,940 - - 1,940 2,298
Charitable activities:
Trust educational
operations 7 14 33,695 3,956 37,665 32,459
Teaching schools 35 3 369 - 372 211
Total 1,957 34,064 3,956 39,977 34,968
Net .
income/(expenditure) 205 (1,055) (2,414) (3,264) 19,717
Transfers between
funds (100) 31 69 - -
Other recognised
gains and losses
Actuarial gains on
defined benefit pension
schemes 31 - (1,851) - (1,851) (4,230)
Net movement in
funds/(deficit) 105 (2,875) (2,345) (5,115) 15,487
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds/(deficit)
brought forward at 1
September 2019 4,939 (8,220) 124,260 120,979 105,492
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The Education Alliance

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

(including Income and Expenditure Account) (continued)

Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted General Fixed Asset 2019/20 2018/19
Funds Funds Funds Total Total
Note £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Total funds/(deficit)
carried forward at 31
August 2020 5,044 (11,095) © 121,915 115,864 120,979
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The Education Alliance

(Registration number: 07542211)
Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2020

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Net assets excluding pension liability

Pension scheme liability

Net assets including pension liability

Funds of the Trust:

Restricted funds
Restricted general fund
Pension reserve
Restricted fixed asset fund

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general fund

Total funds

Note

13
14
16

16
17

18

31

2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000

3 44
121,448 124,216
121,451 124,260
24 20

1,461 763
10,996 10,905
12,481 11,688
(2,649) (3,293)
9,832 8,395
131,283 132,655
(74) (69)
131,209 132,586
(15,345) (11,607)
115,864 120,979
4,250 3,387
(15,345) (11,607)
121,915 124,260
110,720 116,040
5,044 4,939
115,864 120,979

The financial statements on pages 27 to 62 were approved by the Board of Trustees, and authorised

for issue on 16 December 2020 and signed on their behalf by:

......... Branc

Mr R Swain
Trustee
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The Education Alliance

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

2020 2019
Note £ 000 £ 000

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities 24 (1,263) 1,311
Cash flows from investing activities 26 1,370 (21)
Cash flows from financing activities 25 (16) (7)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 91 1,283
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 10,905 9,622
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 27 10,996 10,905
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The Education Alliance

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

1 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The Education Alliance meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Business combinations

The Trust formed Education Alliance Social Value Limited, a 100% owned trading subsidiary, on 4th
March 2019. The trading subsidiary was established to undertake certain non-charitable trading
activities previously undertaken by the Trust. These financial statements present the information
about the Trust and Education Alliance Social Value Limited as'a combined entity using merger
accounting as prescribed by the Charities SORP (FRS 102) and the Academies Accounts Direction
2019 to 2020. The results are consolidated on a line by line basis. All intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the company to continue as a going concern. The Trustees have taken note of the guidance issued by
the Financial Reporting Council on Going Concern Assessments in determining that this is the
appropriate basis of preparation of the financial statements and have considered a number of factors.
The Trustees considered plausible downside scenarios resulting from the impact of the COVID-19
outbreak and its effect on the general position of the Trust and its longer term viability. This has
specifically included reviewing the levels of surplus cash and reserves and detailed forecasting using
sensitivity analysis to ensure that the worst case scenario does not put the going concern concept at
risk. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of
authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Trust has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material
uncertainties about the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, certainty of receipt
and the amount can be measured with sufficient reliability.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitiement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised
as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are spent on capital projects in line with the terms and conditions of the grant. Capital grants
are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they
are expended. .

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Notional donations are recognised along with the matching expense.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the
extent the goods have been provided or on completion of the service.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and
‘Income from other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income
from other trading activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’.
Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not
recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income
from other trading activities’.

Transfer on conversion

Where assets are received by the Trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred assets are
measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of
ownership pass to the Trust, which is on signing of the transfer agreement with the transferring Trust.
An equal amount of income is recognised as transfer on conversion with Donations and capital grant
income.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Transfer of existing academies into the Trust

Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the Trust, the
transferred net assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point
when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the Trust. An equal amount of income is recognised
for the transfer of an existing academy into the Trust within Donatlons and capital grant income to the
net assets acquired.

Donated fixed assets (excluding transfers on conversion/into the Trust)

Where the donated good is a fixed asset, it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed
asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the Trust's
accounting policies. :

Expenditure

All expenditure is recognised in the period in which a liability is incurred and has been classified under
headings that aggregate all costs related to that category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to
particular headings they have been allocated on a basis consistent with the use of resources, with
central staff costs allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the
portion of the asset’s use. Other support costs are allocated based on the spread of staff costs.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities, events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Trust apportioned to charitable activities. :

Intangible ffxed assets

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment. Amortisation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset over its
expected useful life, per the table below

Asset class Amortisation method and rate
Software Over the life of the licence
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Tangible fixed assets
Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the

government-or-from-the private-sector, they-are-included in-the-Balance-Sheet atcost-and depreciated™ -

over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund
in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the
relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful lives, per the tabie below.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Long leasehold land 125 years

Long leasehold buildings Between 40 and 50 years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment Between 3 and 10 years

ICT equipment ' Between 3 and 6 years

Motor vehicles A Between 3 and 6 years
Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Trust
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide. '

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less impairment
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Financial Instruments

The Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the charity’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 18. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instrument’s disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to charity’s wholly owned subsidiary
are held at face value less any impairment.

Stock
Unsold education supplies and catering stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Taxation
The Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Page 35



The Education Alliance

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Pension benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme ('TPS’)
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes. The TPS
is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of -current and- future pensionable payroll. The contributions are_-determined by the
Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method.
TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers.
Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the
contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at
a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at
each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and
the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settiements and curtaiiments. They are included
as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also
-recognised- in-the-Statement-of - Einancial_Activities_and_comprises_the interest cost on the defined
benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of
the scheme assets at the begmnmg of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations.

The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the
scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include.grants from the Department for Education Group.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The .Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in the pension and similar obligations note, will
impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll forward approach which
projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by
the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2020. Any differences between the figures
derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability. )

Agency accounting

The Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments received from
ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial
activities as the Trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The Trust can
use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in the
statement of financial activities. The funds received and paid, and any balances held are disclosed in
note 33.

2 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted 2019/20 2018/19
funds funds Total Total
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000

Other voluntary income

Capital grants - 1,527 1,527 397

Transfer from existing academy - - - 19,413

Other donations 8 20 28 4,010
8 1,547 - 1,555 23,820
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3 Funding for the Trust's educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted 2019/20 2018/19
funds funds Total Total
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000

DfE/ESFA revenue grants

General Annual Grant (GAG) - 28,871 28,871 25,884

Other DfE/ ESFA grants - 3,086 3,086 1,157

Teaching School/ITT grants - - 77 77 170

- 32,034 32,034 27,211

Other government grants .

Other government grants - 792 792 884
" Exceptional government

funding

Coronavirus support funding - 44 44 -

Non-government

grants and other income

Other income from the Trust's

operations 1,214 56 1,270 2,_1 01

Total grants 1,214 32,926 34,140 30,196

Other DfE / ESFA grants includes amounts received in respect of Pupil Premium and Service
Premium, Universal Infant Free Schoo! Meals, PE and Sports Grant, Year 7 Catch Up Grant,

Teachers Pay Grant and Teachers Pension Grant.

The Trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in the year from government support schemes
in response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under “exceptional
government funding” and includes £36,000 received under the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme
relating to sports centre staff costs which are included within note 8 below and £8,000 received for
free-school meals costs outside of the national voucher scheme which are included within notes 6 and

7 below.

4 Other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted 2019/20 2018/19

funds funds Total Total

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000

Hire of facilities/Sports centre 195 - 195 317
Catering income ‘ 67 - 67 103
Wraparound care income 17 - 17 -
Framework fees 547 - 547 .
826 - 826 420
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5 Investment income

Unrestricted Restricted 2019/20 2018/19

funds funds Total Total

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000

Short term deposits 61 - 61 48

6 ‘Expenditure
Non Pay Expenditure

2019/20 2018/19
Staff costs Premises Other costs Total Total
£000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Expenditure on
raising funds
Direct costs 755 22 1,163 1,940 2,298
Trust's
educational
. operations )
Direct costs 22,724 2,682 1,855 27,261 22,912
Allocated support
costs 5,000 3,664 1,740 10,404 9,547
Teaching School 286 - 86 372 211
: 28,765 6,368 4,844 39,977 34,968
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6 Expenditure (continued)

Net incdme/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
Fees payable to auditor for audit

Fees payable to auditor for other services
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets

7 Charitable activities

Direct costs - educational operations
Support costs - educational operations
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7 Charitable activities (continued)

2019/20 2018/19
Total Total
£ 000 £ 000
Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs 5,000 3,951
Depreciation 324 314
Technology costs . T 441 333
Premises costs 3,340 3,534
Legal costs - conversion/transfer 9 16
Legal costs - other 8 9
Other support costs 1,259 1,370
Governance costs : 23 20
Total support costs 10,404 9,547
8 Staff
Staff costs
2019/20 2018/19
£000 . £ 000
Staff costs during the year were:
Wages and salaries ‘ 20,689 17,544
Social security costs 1,882 1,598
Pension costs 5,857 3,775
Apprenticeship levy 89 73
28,517 22,990
. Agency staff costs 234 179
Staff restructuring costs 14 -
28,765 23,169
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8 Staff (continued)

Non statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling
£14,352 (2019: £Nil). Individually the payments were: £10,625 and £3,727.

Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Trust during the year was as follows:

2019/20 2018/19
No No
Charitable Activities
Teachers : 370 354
Administration and support 426 - 427 -
Management 41 , 41
‘837 822

Higher paid staff

The number-of-employees-whose employee-benefits-(excluding-employer-pension-costs)-exceeded
£60,000 was:

2020 2019
o ‘ No No
£60,001 - £70,000 ‘ 14 11
£70,001 - £80,000 . ' - 1
£80,001 - £90,000 - 2
£90,001 - £100,000 . 2 .
£100,001 - £110,000 1 1
£110,001 - £120,000 1 .
£120,001 - £130,000 . 1
£130,001 - £140,000 ‘ 1 .

Key ma‘nagemen't personnel

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team
as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions
and employer national -insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their
services to the Trust was £1,359,904 (2019: £1,155,632).

Page 42



The Education Alliance

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued) .

9 Central services
The Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

* Human resources

* Financial services

* Legal services

* Educational support services
+ Capital project management
* Others as arising

The Trust charges for these services as a flat percentage of GAG income at 4%.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £000

South Hunsley School and Sixth Form College 387 382
Hunsley Primary School 25 : 22
Malet Lambert School ' 294 207
Driffield School and Sixth Form ‘ 258 261
The Snaith School 179 74
North Cave C of E Primary School 15 _
1,158 1,036

10 Related party transactions - Trustees' remuneration and expenses

No Trustees were paid remuneration or have received other benefits from the Trust in the current year
or prior year.

During the year ended 31 August 2020, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £Nil (2019 £Nil)
were reimbursed or paid d |rectly to 0 Trustees (2019 - 0).

Other related party transactions involving the Trustees are set out in note 32.

11 Trustees' and officers’ insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Trust has purchased insurance to protect Trustees
and Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy
business. The insurance provides cover up to £2,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year
ended 31 August 2020 was £564 (2019- £545). The cost of this insurance is included in the total
insurance cost.

Page 43



The Education Alliance

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

12 Statement of financial activities for prior year

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted Fixed Asset 2018/19
Funds General Funds Funds Total
Note £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Income and endowments from:
Voluntary income '
Donations and capital ‘ .
grants 2 © 326 (318) 23,812 23,820
Charitable activities:
Funding for the Trust's
educational operations 3 2,040 28,156 - 30,196
Teaching schools 3 198 - 201
Other trading activites -~ 4 420 - - 420
Investments 5 . 48 - - 48
Total | 2,837 28,036 23,812 54,685
Expenditure_on: :
Raising funds 6 2,298 - - 2,298
Charitable activit)'e s:
Trust educational .
operations 7 2 29,137 3,320 132,459
Teaching schools 34 - 211 ' - 211
Total ' 2,300 29,348 3,320 34,968
Net income/(expenditure) 537 (1,312) 20,492 19,717
Transfers between funds - (52) - 52 -
Other recognised gains
and losses '
Actuarial gains on defined
benefit pension schemes 31 - (4,230) - (4,230)
Net movement in
funds/(deficit) ' 537 (5,594) 20,544 15,487
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds/(deficit) brought
forward at 1 September
2018 4,402 (2,627) 103,716 105,492
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Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted Fixed Asset 2018/19
Funds General Funds Funds Total
Note £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Total funds/(deficit) carried
forward at 31 August 2019 4,939 (8,220) . 124,260 120,979
13 Intangible fixed assets
Computer
software Total
£ 000 £ 000
Cost
At 1 September 2019 . 134 134
At 31 August 2020 134 134
Amortisation
At 1 September 2019 89 89
Charge for the year 42 42
At 31 August 2020 131 131
Net book vatue _
At 31 August 2020 3 3
At 31 August 2019 45 45
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14 Tangible fixed assets ,
Leasehold land Furniture and Computer

and buildings equipment equipment Motor vehicles Total
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £000

Cost
At 1 September
2019 132,852 2,824 - 1,662 54 137,392
Additions - 82 120 - 202
Disposals ’ - (9) - (6) (15)
At 31 August 2020 132,852 2,897 1,782 48 137,579
Depreci’ation
At 1 September
2019 9,488 2,428 1,220 40 13,176
Charge for the year 2,681 135 144 4 2,964
Eliminated on
disposals - (6) - (3) (9)
At .31 August.2020 12,169 2,557 1,364 41 16,131
Net book value
At 31 August 2020 120,683 . . 340 _ 418 _ 7 121,448
At 31 August 2019 123,364 396 442 14 124,216

A substantial part of the site occupied by. North Cave C of E Primary School is occupied under a two
year rolling licence from The York Diocesan Board of Finance Limited. The associated land and
buildings are not recognised in the financial statements as an asset on the basis the Trust does not
have control over the land and buildings and the recognition criteria for an asset have not been met.
The Trust has been granted a 125 lease from East Riding of Yorkshire Council for a small area of land
adjoining North.Cave C of E Primary School, however, the value of this land has not been recognised
as an asset on the basis it is not materlal to the financial statements.
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15 Investments

The Trust owns 100% of the Ordinary shares of Education Alliance Social Value Limited, a company
incorporated in England & Wales. The Trust formed Education Alliance Social Value Limited on 4th
March 2019 and this was established to undertake certain non-charitable trading activities previously
undertaken by the Trust. The principal activity of the company is the hosting of three Public Sector
Frameworks. The income received from this is used to fund mental health and sustainability projects
across the Trust. Any unused income at the end of the year is donated to the Trust through Gift Aid.

Turnover for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £382,802, expenditure was £143,616 and the
profit/(loss) for the year was £239,186. The assets of the company at 31 August 2020 were £299,850,
liabilities were £60,564 and capital and reserves were £239,286.

These financial statements present the information about the Trust and Education Alliance Social
Value Limited as a combined entity using merger accounting  as prescribed by the Charities SORP
(FRS 102) and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. The income and expenditure of the
company is recorded within other-trading activities in these financial statements.

16 Stock

2020 2019
. £ 000 £ 000
Catering 6 5
School supplies ' 18 15
24 20

17 Debtors
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Sundry debtors 165 50
VAT recoverable . 251 31
Other debtors 274 57
Prepayrhents and accrued income » 771 345
1,461 763

Included within prepayments is £40,000 (2019: £nil) relating to the notional rental expense recognised
in the financial statements as a result of the licence to occupy land and buildings at North Cave C of E
Primary School held by The York Diocesan Board of Finance Limited for period of at least two years.
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18 Creditors: amounts falling' due within one year

2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Trade creditors 934 700
Other taxation and social security 458 435
Other creditors 615 487
Accruals and deferred income 642 1,671
2,649 3,293
2020 . 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Deferred income
Deferred income at 1 September 2019 273 332
Resources deferred in the period . 60 185
Amounts released from previous periods (183) (244)
Deferred-income at 31 August 2020 150 273

At the balance sheet date the Trust was holding funds received in advance for educational activities
for the 2020/21 academic year of £76,888, rates relief of £26,832, universal free school meals funding
of £28,659, PP TLR funding for students of £5, 323 unused bursary funding of £10,759 and refugee
fundlng of £2,465.©

Included. within other creditors is £40,000 (2019: £nil) relating to the notional rental expense
recognised in the financial statements as a result of the licence to occupy land and buildings at North
Cave C of E Primary School held by The York Diocesan Board of Finance lelted for period of at
least two years.

19 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

2020 2019
. ‘ £ 000 £000
Other creditors 74 69

{

Included within other creditors greater than one yeér is a loan of £74,114 (2019: £69,369) from Salix
which is provided interest.free, over an 8 year payback period.’
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20 Funds
Balance at 1 '~ Gains, Balance at
September  Incoming Resources losses and 31 August
2019 resources expended transfers 2020
£000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 3,387 28,871 (27,945) (69) 4,244
Other DfE/ESFA Grants - 3,163 (3,163) - -
Other Restricted Funds - 1,199 (1,293) 100 6
Pension fund (11,607) (224) (1,663) (1,851) (15,345)
(8,220) 33,009 (34,064) (1,820) (11,095)
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/ESFA Capital Grant ~ 2,908 1,527 (1,017) - 3,418
Capital Expenditure from GAG 2,460 - (144) 69 2,385
Inherited on A
conversion/transfer 115,430 15 (2,657) - 112,788
Donated assets 3,462 - (138) ' - 3,324
’ 124,260 1,642 (3,956) 69 121,915
Total restricted funds 116,040 34,551 (38,020) (1,751) 110,820
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general funds 4,939 2,162 (1,957) (100) .5,044
Total funds 120,979 36,713 (39,977) (1,851) 115,864
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20 Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at 1 Gains, Balance at
September Incoming Resources losses and 31 August
2018 resources expended . transfers 2019
£000- —— —£-000— £-000 £000 £000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 3,218 25,884 (25,663) (52) 3,387
Other DfE/ESFA Grants - 1,327 (1,327) - -
Other Restricted Funds - 1,313 (1,313) - -
Pension fund (5.844) (488) (1,045) (4,230) (11,607)
(2,626) 28,036 (29,348) (4,282) (8,220)
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/ESFA Capital Grant 3,048 397 (537) - 2,908
- Capital Expenditure from GAG 2,593 - (185) 52 2,460
Inherited on . _
conversion/transfer 98,075 19,815 (2,460) - 115,430
Donated assets - 3,600 (138) - 3,462
103,716 23,812 (3,320) 52 124,260
Total restricted funds 101,090 51,848 (32,668) (4,230) 116,040
~ Unrestricted funds ‘
Unrestricted general funds 4,402 2,837 (2,300) - 4,939
Total funds 105,492 54,685 (34,968) (4,230) 120,979
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20 Funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the Trust. Under the
funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of
GAG that it could carry forward as at 31 August 2020.

Other DfE/ESFA Restricted Funds represent funding feceived from the DfE/ESFA for specific
purposes. Other DfE/EFA grants must be used for the specific for which they are given. These grants
are given to fulfil the charitable objectives of the Trust.

Other Restricted Funds represent >aI'I other restricted funds received which must be used for the
purpose intended.

Restricted Pension Fund relates to the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Restricted Fixed Assets Funds include Inherited from conversion of Local Authority/transfer of existing
"~ academy Fund, DfE/ESFA Capital Grants Fund, Capital Expenditure from GAG Fund and Donated
Asset Fund. These funds represent fixed assets transferred on conversion to an academy, assets
inherited on the transfer of an existing academy into the Trust, assets funded by capital grants,
donated assets and assets purchased from brought forward reserves.
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20 Funds (continued)
Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 were allocated as follows:

2020 2019
£ 000 - £000
South Hunsley School and Sixth Form College 3,815 3,582
Hunsley Primary School ‘ ‘ 440 318
Malet Lambert School 1,449 1,464
Driffield School and Sixth Form 2,064 1,874
The Snaith School 125 -
North Cave C of E Primary School 41 -
Central Services 1,121 1,088
Education Alliance Social Value Limited oo 239 -
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 9,294 8,326
Restricted fixed asset fund 121,915 124,260
Pension reserve (15,345) (11,607)
Total ' 115,864 120,979
Analysis of academies by cost
Expenditure incurred by.each academy during the year was as foliows:
Teaching and
Educational Other Other Costs
Support Staff  Support Educational (excluding Total Total
Costs Staff Costs Supplies Depreciation) 2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000
South Hunsley
School and Sixth :
Form College 7,338 1,937 381 1,954 11,610 11,635
Hunsley Primary
School . 329 127 13 88 557 602
Malet Lambert :
School : 5,413 1,233 . 448 1,392 8,486 7,833
Driffield School and .
Sixth Form 4,968 1,010 244 2,047 8,269 8,309
Snaith School 3,501 938 115 947 5,501 2,305
North Cave C of E
Primary School 461 126 27 108 | 722 -
Education Alliance
Social Value Limited - - - 144 144 -
‘Central services 970 414 70 229 1,683 1,397
Trust 22,980 5,785 1,298 6,909 36,972 32,081

The analysis of central services funds and expenditure in the year includes the results of the SCITT.

Separate analysis of the SCITT is provided in note 35.
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21 Analysis- of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are represented by:

Restricted
Unrestricted . Restricted fixed asset
funds general funds funds Total funds
£ 000 - £000 £ 000 £ 000
Intangible fixed assets - - 3 3
Tangible fixed assets ' - - 121,448 121,448
Current assets 5,286 6,731 464 12,481
Current liabilities : (242) (2,407) - (2,649)
Creditors over 1 year - - (74) - (74)
Pension scheme liability - (15,345) - (15,345)
Total net assets 5,044 ~(11,095) 121,915 115,864 .
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset
funds general funds funds Total funds
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Intangible fixed assets - - 45 45
Tangible fixed assets - Co- 124,216 124,216
Current assets : 5,273 6,413 - 11,686
Current liabilities (334) (2,958) - (3,292)
Creditors over 1 year 4 - . (69) R (69)
Pension scheme liability - (11,607) - (11,607)
Total net assets 4,939 (8,221) 124,261 120,979
22 Capital commitments
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000

Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements -

23 Commitments under operating leases

Operating leases

“At 31 August 2020 the total of the Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases was:

2020 2019

_ £ 000 £ 000

Amounts due within one year 8 11
Amounts due between one and five years 2 7
10 18
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. 24 Reconciliation of net (expenditure)lincome to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating

activities

2019/20 2018/19
£ 000 £000
Net (expenditure)/income (3,264) 19,717
Amortisation 42 ' 34
Depreciation — 2,064 2,853
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (1,527) (3,997)
Interest receivable (61) (48)
Interest payable 23 22
Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited 224 -
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 1,432 ' 857
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 231 188
Transfer from existing academy - (19,413)
Cash inherited on transfer from existing academy - 333
(Increase)/decrease in stocks 4) 6
(Increase)/decrease in debtors (699) 79
(Decrease)/increase in creditors (623) 680
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets (1) -
Net cash (used in)/provided by Operating Activities (1,263) ~ 1,311

25 Cash flows from financing activities
2019/20 2018/19
-£000 £000
Repayments of borrowing ~ (16) (7)
Net cash used in financing activities (16) (7)
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26 Cash flows from investing activities

2019/20 2018/19
£ 000 £ 000
Purchase of intangible fixed assets ' - (52)
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (202) ’ (392)
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed,assets 7 -
_Capital funding received from sponsors and others 1,527 397
Interest received 61 48
Bank interest (23) (22)
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 1,370 ‘(21)
27 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Cash at bank and in hand 10,996 10,905
Total cash and cash equivalents 10,996 10,905
28 Analysis of changes in net debt .
’ At1 Other non- At 31
; September Cash cash August
2019 flows changes 2020
£ 000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents - 10,905 91 - 10,996
Salix loan due within one year (36) 20 - (16)
Salix loan due within after more .
than one year (69) , (5) - (74)
Total 10,800 = . 106 - 10,906
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29 Contingent liabilities

During the period of the funding agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any
asset for which a Government capital grant was received, the Trust is required either to re-invest the
proceeds or to repay to the Secretary of State for Education the same proportion of the proceeds of
the sale or disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State
for Education.

Upon termination of the funding agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State for
Education or the Trust serving notice, the Trust shall repay to the Secretary of State for Education
sums determined by reference to:

a) the value at that time of the Trusts site and premises and other assets held for the purpose of the
Trust, and

b) the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments from the
Secretary of State for Education under the funding agreement.

30 Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the

——— — —event-of-it-being-wound-up-while-he/she-is-a-member;-or-within-one-year after’‘he/she ceases to"be a~
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

31 Pension and similar obligations

. The Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by the East Riding of Yorkshire Council. \
Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS
31 March 2019 respectively.

Contributions amounting to £503,523 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2020 (2019:
£389,983) and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, unfunded, defined benefit occupational scheme,
governed by the Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010 (as amended) and, from 1 April 2014, by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014 (as amended). Membership is automatic for full-time
teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007, automatic too for teachers in part-time employment
foIIowmg appointment or a change of contract, although they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these -contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other
pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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31 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future
costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried
out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5
March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consuitation are:

» employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08%
administration levy)

+ total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated. cost of future
benefits) for service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated
future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of
£196,100 million giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

» the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPIl. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of
prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%.
The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023
The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £3,269,850 (2019: £1,913,564).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102), the TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer pension scheme. The Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it
were a defined contribution scheme. The Trust has set out above the information available on the
scheme.

Local government pension scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £1,475,000 (2019 -
£1,413,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £1,157,000 (2019 - £1,122,000) and
employees' contributions totalled £318,000 (2019 - £291,000). The agreed contribution rates for future
years are between 17.2% and 28.8% for employers and between 5.5% and 12.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in
the event of an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities
would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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31 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

2020 2019

% "%

Rate of increase in salaries ’ 2.20 2.30
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation : 3.10 2.50

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.70 1.90

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in the mortality
rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2020 2019
Retiring today
Males © 209 20.8
Females 23.3 23.3
Retiring in 20 years
- Males 21.8 22.0

Females 248 249

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivities regarding. the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are-set
out below:

Approximate increase to
defined benefit obligation

2020 2019

_ £000 £000

0.5% decrease in real discount rate 4,346 - 3,838

0.5% increase in salary increase rate ’ 303 581

0.5% increase in pension increase rate 3,974 3,180
The Trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:

2020 2019

- : £ 000 £ 000

Equities ' . 11,879 11,941

Government bonds 2,880 2,523

Property 2,160 1,850

Cash and other liquid assets 1,080 505

Total market value of assets 17,999 16,819

The actual return on scheme assets was a loss of £370,000 (2019: gain £683,000).
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31 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

i

2019/20 2018/19
£ 000 £ 000
Current service cost . 2,589 1,979
Interest income ' (332) (434)
Interest cost 563 622
Total amount recognised in the SOFA ' 2,820 2,167
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2019/20 2018/19
£ 000 £ 000
At start of period 28,426 18,901
Transferred in on conversion of academies joining the Trust 578 -
Transferred in on existing academies joining the Trust - 2,305
Current service cost 2,589 1,904
Interest cost ‘ 563 622
Employee contributions 318 291
Actuarial (gain)/loss , , 1,149 4,479
Benefits paid . (279) (151)
Past service cost - 75
At 31 August 33,344 28,426
Changes in the fair value of academy's share of scheme assets:
' 2019/20 2018/19
£ 000 £ 000
At start of period 16,819 13,057
Transferred in on conversion of academies joining the Trust 354 -
Transferred in on existing academies joining the Trust - 1,817
Interest income ‘ 332 434
Actuarial gain/(loss) < (702) 249
Employer contributions . 1,157 1.1 22
Employee contributions 318 291
Benefits paid (279) (151)
At 31 August 17,999 16,819
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32 Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
Trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance
with the requirements of the AFH, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1
“April~2019-and obtaining their-approval - where required,"and with"the Trust's financial regulations and
normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

J Sprakes, spouse of P Sprakes, a Headteacher, is employed by the Trust as a teacher. J Sprakes
appointment was made in open competition and P Sprakes was not involved in the decision making
process. J Sprakes is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no special treatment
as a result of her relationship to a Headteacher.

E Hudson, son of L Hudson, a Headteacher, is employed by the Trust as a lunchtime supervisor. E
Hudson’s appointment was made in open competition and L Hudson was not involved in the decision
making process. E Hudson is paid within the normal pay scale for his role and receives no special
treatment as a result of his relationship to a Headteacher.

E Pipes, daughter of L Longstaff, a member of the Senior Management Team, is employed by the
Trust as cleaner. E Pipes' appointment was made in open competition and L Longstaff was not
involved in the decision making process. E Pipes is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and
receives no special treatment as a result of her relationship to a member of the Senior Management
Team.

—

V Loftus, spouse of J Loftus, a member of the Senior Management Team, is employed by the Trust as
Deputy Headteacher of Driffield School and Sixth Form. V Loftus’ appointment was made in open
competition and J Loftus was not involved in the decision making process. V Loftus is paid within the
normal pay scale for her role and receives no special treatment as a result of her relationship to a
member of the Senior Management Team.

During the year, the Trust received Gift-Aid donations totalling £163,943 (2019: £nil) from its 100%
owned subsidiary, Education Alliance Social Value Limited. At 31 August 2020 amounts due from
Education Alliance Social Value Limited amounted to £63,162 (2019: owed to £46,416). The financial
statements include the combined results of the Trust and Education Alliance Social Value Limited
using merger accounting, as such the related intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in arriving at the net result.

There were no other related party transactions in the year. Trustees’ Remuneration and expenses are
already disclosed in note 10.
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33 Agency arrangements

The Trust distributes 16-19 Bursary Funds to students as an agent for the DfE/ESFA. In the
accounting period ending 31 August 2020 the Trust received £44,372 and disbursed £46,155 from the
fund. An amount of £10,759 is included in creditors relating to undistributed funds that are repayable
to the DfE/ESFA. Comparatives for the accounting period ending 31 August 2019 are £47,320
received, £52,263 disbursed and £12,542 included in creditors.

The Trust also distributes ITT Bursary Grant Funds to trainee teachers as an agent for the DfE/ESFA.
In the accounting period ending 31 August 2020 the Trust received £511,540 and disbursed £504,400
from the fund. An amount of £10,640 is included in creditors relating to undistributed funds that are
repayable to the DfE/ESFA. Comparatives for the accounting period ending 31 August 2019 are
£322,500 received, £319,000 disbursed and £3,500 included in creditors.

34 Conversion to an academy trust

On 1 November 2019 the North Cave Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School
converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and
liabilities were transferred to The Education Alliance from the East Riding of Yorkshire Council Local
Authority for £Nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as net incoming resources in the
Statement of Financial Activities as Donations - transfer from local authority on conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the SOFA.

: Restricted

Restricted fixed asset
general fund fund Total
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000
-Budget surplus on LA funds 53 15 68
LGPS pension deficit (224) - (224)
Net (liabilities)/assets " (171) 15 (156)

The above net liabilities include £67,730 that was transferred as cash.

The freehold land and buildings at North Cave C of E Primary Schoo! are owned by The York
Diocesan Board of Finance Limited and are occupied under a two-year rolling licence in line with the
Church of England academies: Church supplemental agreement. On the basis the Trust does not
have control over the associated land and buildings, the recognition criteria for an asset has not been
met and the Trust has not recorded an asset on the balance sheet. Instead, a notional donation and
matching rental expense has been recorded in the SOFA for the current year together with a related
prepayment and matching expense within other creditors on the balance sheet to recognise the use of
the premises for the remaining notice period.

The Trust has been granted a 125 lease from East Riding of Yorkshire Council for a small area of land

adjoining North Cave C of E Primary School, however, the value of this land has not been recognised
as an asset on the basis it is not material to the financial statements.
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\

35 Teaching school trading account

2019/20 2018/19
£ 000 £ 000
Income
Other Income
“——Fundraising-and-other-trading.activities 287 201
Total Income . 287 201
Expenditure A
Direct costs
Direct staff costs 256 104
Staff development 3 : 1

Other direct costs _ 73 49
Total direct costs ' 332 154

‘Other costs _ )
Support staff costs : . 30 18

Technology costs N = 6—

Recruitment and support . ’ S 2. 14
Other_support costs ' 7 19
Total other costs 39 57
~ Total Expenditure - (371) (211)
Transfers between funds excluding depreciation 100 -
Surplus/(Deficit) from all sources 16 (10)
Teaching school balances at 1 September 2019 (10) .
Teaching school \balances at 31 August 2020 . 6 (10)
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